
 

 

 
 
 
September 13, 2011 
 
 

RE:  11ITB79910K-NH WO42-ALPHARETTA WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN (GAP 
ON KIMBALL BRIDGE RD) 

 
Dear Proposers: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 3, hereby made a part of the above referenced ITB. 
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the ITB number 11ITB79910K-
NH W042-ALPHARETTA WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN (GAP ON KIMBALL 
BRIDGE RD) referenced above remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

aA [tÜÜ|áÉÇ 
Nancy Harrison, CPPB 
Assistant Purchasing Agent 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
11ITB79910K-NH W042-Alpharetta Water Transmission Main (GAP on 
Kimball Bridge Rd) 
Addendum No. 3 
 
This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the 
original ITB documents as noted above: 
 
 

Please be advised that the due date for the ITB referenced above has 
been changed to Friday, September 23, 2011 at 11:00 am. 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 3 
   
The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by 
returning one (1) copy of this form with the bid package to the Purchasing 
Department, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, 
Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the ITB due date and time Friday, 
September 23, 2011 at 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3, __________ day of  
 
____________, 2011. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       
_____________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 

 

Page 2 of 12 
 



 

 
The following information is offered in response to questions and requests for 
clarification. 
 
Question 1.  Will rock be paid for as a change order or is it be included in the 
pipe bid item? 
 
Answer:  Rock will not be paid for as a change order. A geotechnical 
report is available for review in the Public Works Department at 141 Pryor 
Street, Suite 6001. 
 
Question  2.  Are the jack and bores guaranteed or will a tunnel/rock bore be a 
change order if necessary? 
 
Answer:  Rock bore will not be paid for as a change order. A 
geotechnical report is available for review in the Public Works Department 
at 141 Pryor Street, Suite 6001. 

 
Question 3.  Where the 54” line is installed in the road is the compaction 95% 
standard proctor or modified? 
 
Answer:  Compaction requirements in the road will be 95% standard 
proctor. 
 
Question 4.  When the line is outside of the pavement is the compaction 90% 
standard proctor or modified? 
 
Answer:  Compaction outside the pavement is 90% standard proctor. 
 
Question 5.  Will the compaction of sub-grade be done under GDOT 
requirements? 
 
Answer:  Compaction of the sub-grade will be done under GDOT 
requirements. 
 
Question 6:  What is the correct paving section that will be placed in the road?  
The type C detail call for 18” of flowable fill with 1.5” of asphalt on top of that.  Is 
that the detail that will be used? 
 
Answer:  Correct. 

 
Question 7:  Is the pay item for remove and replace asphalt roadway to be 18” 
of flowable fill and 1.5” of asphalt? 
 
Answer:  Yes . 
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Question 8: What are the limits of the resurfacing item?  Is it just for the 1000’ 
where the line is in the road or is it for all of the roadway between the two CW 
Matthews projects? 
 
Answer:  The limits of resurfacing is not limited to the area where the line is in 
the road but includes all of the roadway between the two C.W. Mathews projects. 
Also included are contingencies to cover temporary paving and any additional 
paving that may be required by the City of Alpharetta as restoration. 

 
Question 9: Will the resurfacing item include the 1.5” of asphalt that is over the 
ditch? 
 
Answer:  Yes.  

 
Question 10: Does the resurfacing include milling the road? 
 
Answer:  Yes.   

 
Question 11:  The pressure pipe detail shows the 18” concrete and asphalt 
patch for the width of the ditch while the pavement patch detail Type C has a one 
foot cut out on each side of the trench.  Which is the correct width for payment? 
 
Answer: Type C detail is the correct detail.  

 
Question 12: Is there a bid item for striping the road after it has been 
resurfaced? 
 
Answer:  Striping the road after it has been resurfaced should be considered 
incidental to the resurfacing and should be included with resurfacing cost. 
 
Question 13: In the area off of the roadway where the ground is very wet and 
trench stabilization will be necessary there is a pay item to cover the stabilization 
stone below the pipe, but how will the imported backfill material above the pipe 
be paid for if the native material is too wet to meet the specifications or 
compaction requirements? 
 
Answer:  If the native material is not suitable to comply with the 
specifications or compaction requirements, imported backfill material will 
be paid for from the appropriate allowance. 

 
Question 14.  General Note 14 on the sheet 000-C-001 notes that a message 
board must be up for a minimum of one week before construction.  How many 
message boards are required, where will they be located, and how long do they 
need to be up? 
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Answer:  A minimum of one message board for each direction of traffic 
flow to be located as approved in the traffic control plans submitted during 
the submittal process and approved by the City of Alpharetta. Message 
boards to remain in place for a minimum of one (1) week. 

 
Question 15. Is it correct that two paved lanes of traffic must be maintained on 
Kimball Bridge Road, except for between 9 am and 4 pm Monday through Friday 
when one lane traffic flagging is permitted? 
 
Answer: Correct. 
 
Question 16.   Can a pay item for Lump Sum Traffic Control be added to the bid 
form like it is referenced in measurement and payment so that all temporary 
pavement, temporary storm structures, temporary striping, concrete barrier walls, 
and construction signage can be paid for in conjunction with the work being done 
rather than putting it in the pipe item and having to wait until the pipe is installed 
to be paid? 
 
Answer:   No. 

 
Question 17.  There is approximately 1000’ of 54” line in the road on Kimball 
Bridge.  If the pay width is 9’, then the quantity is only approximately 1,000 
square yards versus the 2,000 in the bid item.  Is there are reason for the extra 
quantity? 
 
Answer:  See answer to question 8. 
 
Question 18. Will temporary asphalt be paid for with the asphalt roadway bid 
item? 
  
Answer:  Yes, Correct. 

 
Question 19.  Where are the 1,000 square yards of asphalt driveway 
replacement that there is a bid item for? 
  
Answer:  Contingency for potential driveway replacement at the various 
drives along the north-side of Kimball Bridge Road including the greenway 
parking lot, Sheridan Ridge CT, Collingwood Lane, and Grey Owl Road. 

 
Question 20.  Is the bid item for 1,000 LF of sidewalk replacement to pay for the 
1,800 feet of 5’ sidewalk on the north side of Kimball Bridge that will be replaced 
during the 12” and 54” construction as well as the approximately 500’ of 
greenway sidewalk that is going to be replaced? 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
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Question 21. Does the greenway sidewalk have a different specification 
than the standard 4” thickness with welded wire mesh? 
 
Answer: No; The greenway sidewalk does not have a different 
specification than the standard  4-inch thickness. No welded wire fabric 
required. 
 
Question 22.  Will signage be required at the two locations that are being 
closed? 
 
Answer: Two signs stating sidewalk closed may be temporarily placed at 
the limits of replacement of the greenway sidewalks. The remainder of the 
greenway will not be closed. 

 
Question 23.   When the greenway is closed at the creek crossing will 
temporary access be required from another location? 
 
Answer:  The greenway will not be closed. The greenway shall remain open at 
all times with the proper safety measures. 
 
Question 24. How much room is available for constructing the temporary 4’ 
gravel trail for the greenway near the fire station?  It appears that a safety fence 
would be needed between the pipeline project and the temporary trail, but also 
some substantial grading will be necessary to get a safe and flat area for the 
temporary trail.  How is this work to be paid for? 
 
Answer:  All construction pertaining to the temporary 4’ gravel trail will be 
paid for from pay item B-12.b 

 
Question 25. What are the limits of the permanent and temporary easements 
from the fire station down to the creek?  It is hard to distinguish limits on the plans 
and with the slope that has been built by CW Matthews it appears a good deal of 
dirt will have to be piled up somewhere while the work area is benched out to 
accommodate the large equipment necessary for installation. 
 
Answer: The topography might be changed and therefore should be field 
verified. The permanent easement shall be 10-feet on both side of the centerline 
of the pipe for a total width of 20-feet. The easement is marked on the plans. 
 
Question 26.Can the silt fence be placed at the limits of the construction 
easement below the pipeline?  It shows the fence very close to the ditch line, but 
all of the easement will be necessary to work. 
 
Answer: Yes. The silt fence can be placed at the limits of the easement below 
the pipeline. 
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Question 27. There is a guardrail that will have to be removed and replaced near 
the fire station where the 54” line crosses Kimball Bridge.   Will a pay item be 
added or is this to be in the pipe item? 
 
Answer: Yes. The removal and replacement of the guardrail should be 
considered incidental to the work and should be included in the pay item for pipe. 
 
Question 28. Where is concrete blocking on the 12” water line paid for? 
 
Answer: Concrete blocking on the 12-inch water main shall be paid from pay 
item B-21. 

 
Question 29. What pay item is the 6x6 pad under the 54” line at STA 139+00 
included in? 
 
Answer :  Pay items B-17.a 

 
Question 30. What size is the gravity line that runs parallel to the 54” line from 
STA 139+00 to 141+00?  It appears that it is much shallower than the 54” and 
could be closer than the 10’ minimum separation required. 
 
Answer: Gravity sewer is 10-inches in diameter. If the sewer comes within 10-
feet horizontally or 1.5-feet vertically the sewer line should be concrete encased. 

 
Question 31. Where is the 20 LF of 8” Sanitary Sewer relocation and 4’ manhole 
on the plans and what is the material of the 8” line?  This is necessary to 
determine what type of material and bypassing may be necessary to include in 
the per foot replacement price? 
 
Answer: Materials shall be 8-inch DIP.  Bypass shall be included in the per foot 
replacement price. 
 
Question 32.  Are brick inverts required in sanitary sewer manholes? 
 
Answer: Yes. 

 
Question 33. Will the county pay for the temporary removal of guy wires and 
pole holding that will be necessary with the Utility Conflict Resolution Allowance? 
 
Answer: Yes. 

 
Question 34. How is the material required for reconnecting the large meter 
vaults at Grey Owl and the apartment complex to be paid for? 
 
Answer: It shall be paid from the task allowance. 
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Question 35. There is a remove and replace meter box item.  Is this only for ¾” 
meters that may be on the project? 
 
Answer: It might be ¾” to 2”meter size; bigger size shall be paid from task 
allowance. 

 
Question 36. The meter box item reads by the each but the pay item unit is LF.  
Please clarify. 
 
Answer: Pay item unit should be “EA” (Bid Form changed to reflect this). 

 
Question 37. Can the ¾” to 2” service lines that need to be replaced please be 
identified?  There is a large difference in price between a ¾” copper short side 
service and a 2” copper long side service and there are no services shown on the 
plans. 
 
Answer: If service line appears more than 2”, it shall be paid from task 
allowance. 

 
Question 38. Is the B-15 Creek Crossing bid item a linear foot price to include all 
coffer dams, dewatering, rip rap, concrete encasement, 54” DIP, stream bank 
restoration, and anything else necessary for a complete crossing? 
 
Answer: Yes, B-15 Creek Crossing bid item a linear foot price to include all 
coffer dams, dewatering, rip rap, concrete encasement, 54” DIP, stream bank 
restoration, and anything else necessary for a complete crossing. 
 
Question 39. What are the limits of construction across Big Creek, what permit is 
this under, and are there any time restrictions? 
 
Answer: County will provide Corps of Engineers permit for creek crossing. The 
permit will identify  the limits of disturbance. 

 
Question 40. Is the contractor responsible for obtaining any permits on this 
project? 
 
Answer: Yes. Fulton County will only provide Corps of Engineers permit for 
creek crossing.  

 
Question 41. Will the lead time on production of the pipe be considered when 
issuing an NTP? 
 
Answer: Yes. 90 days lead-time with be considered for the manufacture of 54-
inch pipe. 
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Question 42.  It appears that the 54” line runs under the wing-walls and apron of 
a cast-in-place box culvert that will be complete before this project begins.  How 
does the county intend for the contractor to get under that culvert?  
 
Answer: The pipe will not be under the wing wall but adjacent to it. It is not under 
box culvert. 54-inch line shall be off of box culvert wing-wall. 

 
Question 43. There appears to be a steel gas main that was installed during the 
bridge project which does not appear on your plans, but could be in direct conflict 
with the 54” line as it is shown near the box culvert and creek.  Can this line be 
shown on the plans and will the county relocate the 54” line to avoid this 
conflict?  The gas line will also be in conflict with the blow offs as they are 
depicted. 
 
Answer: Gas line may be relocated if it is a direct conflict. Payment shall be paid 
from cash allowance. 

 
Question 44. It appears that the ARV detail for the 54” line is a 54x36 tee out the 
side of the 54” line, with some 36” DIP leading to a 36”x36” tee where the double 
8” ARV’s are mounted.  Why wouldn’t the two 8” ARV’s be mounted to the 36 x 
54 tee with the 36” outlet on the top and an 8” steel vent pipe run to the area 
outside of the road?  This would eliminate the need for all of the 36” pipe, 
additional tee, and concrete, while the manhole would stay the same diameter. 
 
Answer: Yes, we can accept this proposal. But ARV operation key shall be 
vertical screw nut system (Bid Form has been changed to reflect this alternate). 

 
Question 45. The pay item B-8.a lists the quantity as 1 ARV assembly complete 
paid by the each.  Is this pay item for 1 Each to include the 2 8” Vent-o-mat 
valves shown in the detail? 
 
Answer: ARV assembly & Vent-o-mat valves shall be paid separately. 

 
Question 46. Are the ARV Manholes precast? 
 
Answer: Yes. Manholes shall be precast. 
 
Question 47. Are the Butterfly Valve manholes precast? 
 
Answer: Butterfly valve manholes shall be cast-in-place. 

 
Question 48. Is the rip rap in the Blow off manhole and at the outlet of the storm 
pipe included in the blow off pay item? 
 
Answer: It shall be paid from pay item B-1.f 
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Question 49. How will the landscape restoration be paid for? 
 
Answer: It shall be paid from task allowance. 

 
Question 50. There is an electronic speed limit sign on the north side of Kimball 
Bridge in conflict with the 12” water line. Is the contractor responsible for removal 
and replacement?  If so where is this paid for? 
 
Answer: It shall be paid from task allowance with reasonable market price 
 
Question 51. Will tree save fence be required where clearing is necessary for 
the 12” water line? 
 
Answer: Yes, orange tree fence will be necessary for 12” line installation. 

 
Question 52. The limits of the jack and bores of the 54” line are not shown on 
the plan or profile.  Please provide this information so that the correct shoring 
and trench boxes that will be necessary can be determined based on the depth 
of the pit. 

   
Answer: Size and depth of receiving pit and bore pit to be determined in field. 
 
Question 53. What is the depth and detail of item B-10. a, b, c 
 
Answer: See answer to question 6 & 7. 
 
Question 54. Do we include milling the entire street under this item B-10? 
 
Answer: Yes. Item B10b will include milling and paving as resurfacing for 
the entire road. 
 
Question 55. The above referenced project has within the specifications a 
requirement for General Contractors Licenses. This projects scope of work 
is a pipeline project and there is no vertical construction and normally 
pipeline projects only require a Utility Contractors License. Please specify 
if this project does or does not require general contractors Licenses. 
 
Answer:  A Utility Contractor License is required. 
 
Question 56.  Are we missing the Fulton County Standard Details or 
Geotechnical investigation? 
 
Answer: A subsurface geotechnical report done in the vicinity of the 
project is available for review in the Department of Public Works, 141 
Pryor Street, Suite 6001. Contact  All Fulton County Standard Details 
relevant to the project is currently included in the documents. 
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Question 57. Is the 85 LF of 72- Inch steel casing at Sta. 151+05 meant 
to be jack and bored or is it open cut? 
 
Answer: Jack and bore.  
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The following information should be noted as changes  to the Plans and/or Contract 
documents. 
 
Plans: 

1. Drawing Number 010-C-04- Water main blow-off Detail- Station shall be 155+43 
instead of 157+35.  

2. Drawing Number 010-C-04- Water main blow-Blow-off connection shall be 54”x24” 
tee with MJ fittings instead of welded on outlet. 

3. Drawing Number 031-C-09- Install butterfly valve (instead of Butterfly G.V.) with 
vault & thrust block (T.B.) 

Contract documents: 
 

1. Measurement & payment:  Section 01025 Page 135 of 238 Article “L” item 2.-  
Payment for AIR RELEASE VALVE, itself shall be made at the unit price named 
for the construction of the air release valve at the station indicated. The price 
shall constitute full payment for the assembly of air valve including piping, tee, 
tapping, fittings, manhole, frame & cover, stone and all related items as called for 
on the drawings and in the specifications. 
 

2. Water Mains and Accessories:  Section 022665 Page 243 of 288 Article “2.13” 
item E. 
Air release and vacuum valves shall be manufactured in compliance with 
ANSI/AWWA C512 and shall be Vent-O-Mat as manufactured by Valve or equal, 
modified to provide the specified features and to meet the specified operating 
conditions. 
 

Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1  -  Revised Drawings 
 
Attachment 2  -  Revised Bid Form “Segment B.1” 
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